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Michelle Smey, Chief, Business Licensing Division = w J

State Board of Funeral Directors
P.O. Box 2649
Harrisburg, PA 17105

Re: Proposed Rulemaking to 49 Pa. Code,
Sec. 13.204 and 13.224 as well as Regulation 16a-4817

Dear Ms. Smey:

Please consider this correspondence as a supplement to our
May 11, 2007, correspondence concerning the above proposed regulation.

As noted previously, the Pennsylvania Funeral Directors Association
wishes to support the proposed regulation but suggest that it be strengthened
even further. The Commonwealth’s review of forms has been at best,
nominal and should be more extensive. The current review process is really
only cursory including basic criteria such as those listed in Sec. 13.204.
There is neither a thorough review of the Master Trust document nor how it
is inter-related to the individual pre-need trust document. This has created
difficulties in the past.

Former companies and current companies have a basic form approved
and yet the Master Trust document did not comply with the Funeral
Directors Law, banking law or current court decisions. Two prime examples
of this is where Mechem Financial had its form approved and once they told
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funeral directors they were in compliance, within a few years, $4-$9 million
dollars was gone. Funeral directors were held responsible for making good
on the funerals. '

In 1998, a company named Commonwealth Partnership Trust (CPT)
had a similar approach where their forms were approved by the
Commonwealth. CPT Principals were convicted of stealing $7-$8 million of
preneed funds as well. Had a more thorough review of all the documents
been done, these issues may have been prevented.

There are currently programs in this Commonwealth that offer
preneed to funeral directors where forms have been reviewed but violate
Funeral Directors Law and perhaps securities law. As an example, there is
a master trust document that allows for the loaning of preneed trust funds
even though the Department of Banking has stated years ago that one cannot
borrow preneed funds. This has been done in the past.

Another example is funeral directors who have taken trust monies and
had them converted to life insurance policies solely for the purpose of
obtaining a commission. This has been done without the consumers’
knowledge or consent.

There should be more scrutiny of preneed funds and the documents
that control them. Over the past 25 years, millions of dollars have been
missing because of lack of enforcement and review by the Commonwealth.
New statutes are not necessary. What is necessary is a more comprehensive
review of the forms, perhaps by the Department of Insurance, the Securities
Commission, Department of Banking and the Funeral Board, prior to
approval being given.

PFDA strongly encourages the State Board to commit to a process
that would provide a comprehensive review of all forms to prevent scenarios
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such as those that have happened historically. This process would protect
consumers as well as the licensee population from unscrupulous entities.

PFDA also wishes to go on record as opposing the licensure fee
increase unless the Commonwealth provides greater oversight with respect
"to preneed and enforcement of the current law. PFDA has advocated for
years that the Commonwealth should review all forms. It should be
mandatory for Banking, Insurance, Securities and the Funeral Board to sign
off on such forms prior to approval.

In addition, the Commonwealth must be more attentive to enforcing
statutes and regulations regarding unlicensed practice. One count Orders to
Show Cause are ridiculous when dealing with companies that have operated
illegally for decades. This is not in the interest of the profession or the
consumer. One count Orders to Show Cause only reinforce improper
behavior.

Should you have any questions, I am available at your convenience to
discuss these matters.

Very tpuly yours,

W. Eirkson, Executive Director
DA '

Enclosures

c:  Honorable Michael Sturla
Honorable Robert Tomlinson
Honorable Harry Readshaw




PENNSYLVANIA FUNERAL DIREGTORS

ASSOCIATION

May 11, 2007

Michelle Smey, Administrator -
State Board of Funeral Directors

P.O.Box 2649

Harrisburg, PA 17105-2649

Re: Proposed Rulemaking to 49 Pa. Code, §13.204 and §13.224
Dear Ms. Smey:

The Pennsylvania Funeral Directors Association is submitting the
within written comments pursuant to the 30 day publlc comment period as
noticed in the Pennsylvania Bulletin.

PFDA is in agreement with the proposed amendments to the above
named sections of the code. However, it is not sufficient for the Board to
review only the form for the Statement of Funeral Goods and Services.

PFDA has been in the preneed trust and insurance business for over
two decades. We currently hold over $70 million in trust and insurance
preneed funds. The Board and IRRC should be aware that there are two
other documents that dictate the terms of the agreement between the
consumer and the funeral director. Those documents are the individual trust
agreement between the consumer and the funeral director and the master
trust agreement between the funeral director and the bank. Both of these
documents detail terms such as how the monies can be invested and in what
vehicle; what happens in the event of cancellation or non-performance or if
the consumer moves to another funeral home; what fees and expenses can be
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taken from the account; and in some cases, whether or not the funeral
director can receive monies back from the bank (such as 30% on the
merchandise sale).

PFDA has never permitted funeral directors to receive anything back
from the bank. However, there are currently programs in this
Commonwealth that do allow such returns, which we believe violates the
spirit, if not the letter of the 100% trusting requirement. Therefore, PFDA’s
position that the State Board should include in any forms review, the
requirement of all documents that effect the transaction between the
consumer and the funeral director in order to eliminate programs that are not
in compliance with the law and that have the potential for ultimately
harming the consumer.

I have attached a copy of the documents used by our trust program for
your review. Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to
contact me.

Very truly yours,
W. Eirkson, Executive Director

PFDA

Encs.

Smey corr re 13.204 and 13.224 : /




HISTORICAL BACKGROUND

Section 13C of the Pennsylvania Funeral Director Law deals"

with the subject of payments to funeral directors for pre-paid
funeral services. Essentially, it requires that the funeral
director place such moneys in trust in a banking institution in
Pennsylvania to be withdrawn only upon performance of the funeral
contract. In 1986-1987 sales of pre-need was a very popular item
within the funeral directing industry in Pennsylvania and various
programs were offered to Pennsylvania funeral directors to assist
them in handling pre-need funds. One such program was offered by
Mechem Financial, Inc., a Pennsylvania corporation which had
experience through its sister corporation in Ohio (Mechem Financial
of Ohio, Inc.). The State Board of Funeral Directors expressed an
interest in the handling of pre-need funds by funeral directors and
invited all those who were offering pre-need programs to Pennsyl-
vania funeral directors to appear before the Board and explain how
their program operated. In December, 1987, John Copple (the
founder and operator of Mechem Financial, Inc.) appeared before the
Board with his counsel and explained, in detail, to the Board the
fashion in which his program operated. He also submitted to the
Board the various documents, contracts, trust instruments, etc.
utilized by Mechem Financial, Inc. The Board listened but asked

no questions.

Shortly thereafter the Pennsylvania Funeral Directors
Association through their counsel appeared before the State Board
of Funeral Directors and suggested to them that a review of the
Mechem documents indicated that this corporation was not a "banking
institution" in Pennsylvania and therefore was not qualified to
accept pre-need funds from funeral directors. The State Board did
nothing. The Pennsylvania Funeral Directors Association told the
State Board of Funeral Directors that they had an obligation to
advise licensed funeral directors in Penhsylvania as to whether or
not Mechem was qualified to accept funds and that if the Board had
any doubts themselves as to the status of Mechem as a banking
institution, they should request an Attorney General'’s opinion to
guide them. The Board did nothing.

In the meantime, Mechem’s representatives roamed Pennsylvania
telling funeral directors "we explained our program to the State
Board of Funeral Directors and we have received their approval."
The PFDA notified the Board of this fact and asked the Board to
notify Mechem and Pennsylvania funeral directors that Mechem
Financial, Inc. did not have the approval of the State Board of
Funeral Directors. The Board did nothing.

In 1988, PFDA notified the State Board of Funeral Directors
that Mechem was in trouble in Ohio and that, at the request of the




Ohio Board of Funeral Directors, the Ohio Attorney General had
brought injunctive action on the basis of Mechem not being a
banking institution in Ohio. The PFDA requested that the Pennsyl-
vania Board follow the example of the Ohio Board and either:

(1) request an Attorney General opinion on the Mechem
matter, or

(2) request the Attorney General’'s permission to bring
injunctive action.

The Board did nothing.

Mechem Financial, Inc. in Ohio filed in federal bankruptcy.
The Pennsylvania Board and the Office of Attorney General were
notified and took no action.

The PFDA notified the State'Board cf Funeral Directors that
Mr. Copple, on behalf of Mechem, was investiqg.pre-need funds in
rare coins (a highly speculative investment). -

The PFDA notified the Pennsylvania Securities Commission of
Mechem’s unauthorized investments. The Securities Commission
issued a cease and desist order (which Mechem promptly appealed and
continued its activities).

Agent Zorn of the Erie office of the Federal Bureau of
Investigation in the course of investigating Mechem Financial,
Inc.’'s activities requested the State Board of Funeral Directors
to give him access to the filings with the State Board. The State
Board refused to supply this information citing their own
regulation regarding the "confidentiality" of such reports.

The PFDA notified the State Board and the Office of Attorney
General that Mechem continued to invest in rare coins, that Mechem
was transferring assets from the Pennsylvania corporation to the
Ohio corporation and requested that the State Board of Funeral
Directors warn Pennsylvania funeral directors that Mechem was not
a "banking institution"” within the meaning of Section 13C of the
Funeral Director Law. The State Bdard of Funeral Directors
responded by saying that the Board has no jurisdiction over Mechem
and that the Board cannot tell a funeral director with whom he can
or cannot invest moneys and that the Board’s jurisdiction would
come into play if, and only if, a funeral director should fail to
perform the pre-need contract.

‘“Meanwhile, Mechem was filing, annually, with the Pennsyl-
vania State Board of Funeral Directors on behalf of funeral
directors participants, reports regarding the pre-need contracts
for which mechem Financial, Inc. had obtained moneys. The Board
did not bother to look at any of these filings.




The PFDA notified the State Board of Funeral Directors and the
Office of Attorney General that Mechem had filed an "accounting"”
with the Orphan’s Court of Erie County (a document that would
verify or disprove the information contained in Mechem’s annual
filings with the State Board of Funeral Directors regarding pre-
need funds) and requested the Board scrutinize the proffered
"accounting." The Board refused to do so.

Mechem Financial, Inc. filed in bankruptcy in the Federal
Court for the Western District of Pennsylvania. The PFDA notified
the State Board of Funeral Directors of this fact and suggested the
Board contact the bankruptcy trustee to see if they could be of
assistance to him in handling this delicate matter. The Board did
nothing.

Recently the Pennsylvania State Board of Funeral Directors,
"authorized and instructed” the Board prosecutors to bring
disciplinary action against any Pennsylvania funeral director who
invested with Mechem Financial, Inc. because Mechem Financial, Inc.
is not a "banking institution" within the meaning of Section 13C.
The Board prosecuting attorneys, without individual investigation,
are demanding that funeral directors who at any time had trans-
ferred moneys to Mechem Financial, Inc., sign a consent decree or
face prosecution and disciplinary action. The proposed consent
decrees embody provisions which we deem of doubtful legal validity
in -that they: '

(1) Purport to authorize the funeral director to
substitute for trust moneys he received from
consumers (and should have placed in a banking
institution) an insurance policy purchased
from a "Board approved trust/insurance
program, " and,

(2) Purport to authorize the funeral director to
convert to his own use any trust funds that
might be authorized to be paid on behalf of
consumers in the bankruptcy action.

/
We, like the AARP, believe that these proposals are not in the
best interests of the consuming public and have the potential for
causing further losses to Pennsylvania citizens.




U.S. Department of Justice

Dayid M. Barasch
United States Attorney
Middle District of Pennsylvania

Federal Building, Suite 230
P.0. Box 11754

328 Wainut Stree: 717-321-442
Harrisburg, PA 17108-i754 FAX 717-2314582

March 3, 2000

David M. Barasch, United States Attorney for the Middle

District of Penmsylvania, and Bruce R. Chambers, Inspectcr in

Chzrge, Philadelphiz Metro Divisicn, United States Postal

Inspection Sexvice have anncunced that three New Jersey men zand

& Lebanon County resident have been indicted on charges they

defrauded 28 Pennsylvaniz
than §7,300,000.

STEVEN STACKPOLE,

JOSEPE CORDO,

Indizccment with Mail Fraud,

QO
(1]

funerzl homes and 1 individuzls out

age 51, fcrmerly of Cradell, New

his son SCOTT STACKPOLE, age 33, cf Leonia, New Jersey,

River, New/Jersey, andé JEFFREY

e District of Peamsylvaniz
Ccnspiracy znd Mcney Laundering
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Ssstember of‘1997, and the funerzl hcmes out of approximately
5,800,000 between April of 139§ ang September of 1837,
Allegedly, the defandants induced the victims to inves: in 2
company owned and Ccperated by R. STEVEN STOCKPOLE and GAVIN T.
GREENE in New York, New ¥crk, kncwn as EA International Trust
(ERIT). The investors weve told their monies would ke invested

by EAIT in the stock markst. However, less than one-third of the

<

'$7,300,000 was invested in that manper, The only othexr
“investments” =ATT allegedly made was $61,000 for é two bed=oom
condo in Hackensack, New Jersey and $85,000 in a tcpless dance
club in the Bropx.

The Indistment avers that more than two-thirds of the
$7,300,000 was misspent by the defendants on excesgive cperating
@xXpensss angd their own compensation.< Allegedly, scoTr széKPOLE
received $389,385, R, STEVEN STACXPOLE $634,057, and GREEN
$815,211. Another $303,000 was paid to a2 bankrupt insurance
agency cperatad by R. STEVEQ STACKXPOLRE ianew Jersey and anothar
$177,000 was paid to a management company owned by scorT
STACXPOLE. CORDO gllegedly received more than $230,000 ang

smoloyed $50,000 of these Zunds =o burchases z roat. XLEPPER

&VCld a Sherisfsig Saie of his 87 Walden ERoag, Lebaner, za
Tesidsncs., The gevernment is seskins the forfeiture or beth the
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KLEPPER’s court crdersd resstituticn in his 1994 fageral fraud
conviction. In March of 1557 R. STEVEN STACEPOLE was indicted by
the State of New Jersey on charges that he had dafrauded numerous

investors in that state between 1282 and 13%4, STAUXPOLE was
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subsequently convicted and is presentl
on these charges.
The monies invested by the funeral homes wers derived from

the sale of pre-nesed, funeral service contracts. 2 Dre-nesd

pays for funesral services in advance of death. Pennsylvaniz law
requires funeral directers to deposit the funds derived from such

sales into an escrow account at a Pennsylvania beaaking

m

institution, or te transfer seme “iz trust to & banking

institution in this Cocmmenwealth, cenditicned upen its withdzaw

: ~ = H Sae 5 ‘ ) S <4 = 3
Ste82S Zor the Iunsral hcomes and tc invest their Pre-nesd funds
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ZAIT. A lcczal business, Commonwealth Partnership Trust

%
'.l-
it
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[13]

(CPT}, 702 Cumberlznd Streskt, Lebanon, PA, wzs incorporzted by

(4]

ELEPPER and CORDO to preomeote the sale and administration o
Zunerzl home.investmeats with EAIT. According to the

Indiztment, KLZPPER zllegedly pald JAMES BUTLER, 2 former

£18,000 in "“commissiocns” for his help in securing fumeral home

BUTLER has zlready plead cuilfty to an Iafermation charging
him with Misprisen of a Felomy im U.S, District Court, Harrisburg
and is presently szwaiting sentencing. Under the tsxms cf a Plea
Acreesment filed with the Court, BUTLER is cooperating with the
goverament in comnection with it's investigation of these
activities. GAVIN GREENE has similarly executed a élea
agresment calling Zfor his guilty plea to an Information charging
him with Mail Fraud. GREENE's plea agreement alsc reguires him
tc cocparate with the gcverﬁﬁent.

The case was iavestigated by the Harrisburg Office of ths

PREFRTY
cmens o= InFommatica i3 2ot gvidencze of goils buf gimsly a
Sipeisn of iha ciasge =ade by ihg Szasd Jusy exd/or Umicad
as a&&-—-w az: d=gr 3 defandase, A :'.ha:g'ad Saesfandast la
wmed i=nocenc until & JUTY Tetums & wuanilces finding tiat the
8d Sriies has pzoven the dafpodect’s guilr beyund 3 sssgopakls
d.,.b. Cx unkil mha defencdznt kas pled guiliy to ihs chasges,
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE MIDDLE DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA : ‘

: Crimina No/ /00 -ch-Y

V. . - / )
R. STEVEN STACKPOLE,
SCOTT STACKPOLE,
JEFFREY KLEPPER, and
JOSEPH CORDO
INDICTMENT F”_E
ED
HAEEISBURG‘ =73
The Grand Jury Charges: . FER 163
Lac ] no

COUNTS 1-11 ZA”YE ' .
(Mail Fraud) f - CLERK

1, Atall times pertinent hereto, GAVIN T. GREENE was the President and

A.  Background

R. STEVEN STACKPOLE was the Vice-President of EA Infernational, Inc. (EAT). EA
International Trust (EAIT) was a New Jersey corporation that operated as a division of
EAJL EAIT wes owned equally by STACKPOLE and GREENE and they served as its co-
trustess. R. STEVEN STACKPOLE and GREENE had signamr:alrthority en EAT and
EAIT accounts. EAT’s and EATIT’s offices were originally located in Oradell, NJ and

..a-"‘"

- .
S pudia

were later moved to 237 Park Avenue, New York, NY. Ganitad oG (52
’ -r'ﬁ'ﬂﬁu !;’40 TRV
nate A1 1102
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2 SCOTT STACKPOLE is R. STEVEN STACKPOLE's son. At all times

pertinent hereto, SCOTT STACKPOLE functioned as EAI’s and EAIT's office manager

under the name of Harris Coordinating Services, Inc.

(93]

At all times pertinent hereto, JOSEPH CORDO resided in New Jersey.

4,  Atall times pertinent hereto, JEFFREY KLEPPEﬁ resided at 87 Walden
Road, Lebanon, Pennsylvania. On September 2, 1994, KLEPPER was convicted of a
federal fraud offense in the U.S. District Court for the District of Delaware. As part of his
sentence KLEPPER was ordered to pay $103,510 in restitution.

5.  InNovember of 1994 R. STEVEN S'I;ACKPOLE, GAVIN GREENE, and
JOSEPH CORDO began soliciting investments from private individuals with EAIT.
Upon his release from prison in February of 1995, KLEPPER &lso began selling the EAIT
investments to individual investors. The individuals were told EAIT would invest their
money in stocks selected by EAIT’s investment manager, Maidstone Financisl, Inc., 2
New York, NY investment banking ﬁrm The investors were promised annual returns of
12% on 1 and 5 year investments and were assured EATT was IRA: "rollover-qualified"
for federal income tax purpeses. The iﬁdividuals were also told their investments were
fully insured. As a result, betwesn November of 1994 and September of 1997, 31
individuals invested approximately 31,506,436 with EAIT. EAIT paid CORDO and
KILEPPER substantial ccmmissicns on the invesunents,

6. Inlate 1995 R. STEVEN STACKPOLE, GREENE, KLEPPER, and others
began scliciting investments from Pennsylvania funeral hemes with EAIT. The monies

Page2of 25
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targeted were the funds generated by the funeral homes’ sale of pre-need, funeral service
coniracts. A pre-nesd, funeral service contract is an arrangement whereby an individual
pays for funeral services in advancs of death. Penmsylvania law requires funera] directors
to deposit the funds denved from such sales inio an escrow account at & Pennsylvania
banking institution, or to transfer saxx;e "in trust io a banking institution in this
Commonwealth, conditioned upon its withdrawal or disbursement only for the purposes
for wﬁich such money was accepted.” See 69 Pa.C.S.A. § 479.13(c). |

7. Commonwealth Partnership Trust, Inc. (CPT) was incorporated by
KLEPPER and CORDO to serve as EAIT"s agent in the sale and administration of funeral
home investments with EATT. KLEPPER and CORDO each owned 50% of CPT.
KLEPPER served as CPT’s President; CORDO was listed as its Vice-President.
KLEPPER exercised control over CPT’s bank accounts inv Pennsylvania, CPT’s offices
were located at 702 Cumberland Street, Lebanon, PA. - |

8 R STEVEN STACKPOLE, GREENE and KLEPPER persuaded
USBancorp in Johnstown, Pennsylvania and later Nazareth National Bank in Nazareth,
Pennsylvania, hereinafier referred to as "the banké," to serve as trustess for the funeral
homes and to invest their pre-need money in "Private Placement Annuity Contracts” with
EATT. Like the individua] investors, the banks and the fumeral homes wers told EATT
would invest their money in stocks selected by its investment manager, Maidstone
Financial. EAIT agreed to rerurn the fimds in each pre-nesd, account upon the
cusiomer’s death. In the interim, EATT apreed to pay annual interest of 6 1o 11 percent
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1
on the pre-need accounts, the rate of retumn depending upon the amount of money

invested by each funeral home,

9 EATT agreed to pay|CPT 20% of every funeral horné dollar it received. In
order to induce investments, CP’I][pafd a portion of its 20% to the director of each funeral
home that imvested with EAIT asja "finders fee,”

10. EAIT sent the bank‘ls a monthly statement reflecting the samings and the
account balance for each funeral Iomc. CPT sent each funeral home a monthly statement
| itemizing the eamings and balances on each pre-need, customer account. Like the

 individual investors, the banks and the fimeral directors were assured their investments
with EAIT were fuily‘insm'ed.

11.  The pre-need funds/were deposited into trust accounts at the banks before

they were wired to en EATT account in New York. Between April of 1996 and
* September 23, 1997, the two hanlis wired approximately $5,807,068 from 28

Pennsylvania funeral homes to BEAIT.

B. The Scheme And Artifice to Defrand .

/
12.  Between November of 1994 and December of 1998, in the Middle Distrdct

of Pennsylvania and elsewhers, the defendants,

Rl STEVEN STACKPOLE,
SCO'IT STACKPOLE, and
,'JEFFREY KLEPPER,
|
and others, known and unlmown to this grand jury, did devise a scheme and arifice 1o
'l
defraud the individual investors, ‘me banks, and the funeral homes, hereinafier referred to as
I! Page 4 of 25
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"the investors," and did obtain their money and property; to wit, approximately §7,313 ,504,
by means of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations aﬁd promises, and by failing 10

disclose material facts regarding their investnents and the dispesition of same,

C. Masupner and Means of th]e Scheme to Defraud - The False Representations
And The Non-Disclosares of Material Facts

13, Contrary to what had been represented to the investors, less than one third of

the money was invested by EAIT in stocks selected by its investment manager, Maidstone

Financial. Of approximately §7 ,;31 5,504 sent to EAIT, only 32,390,000 was deposited by
[ A

EAIT into its Maidstone Account. Of this amount EAIT withdrew $712,000 for operating -

expenses. None of these material facts were disclosed to the investors.

14, Moreover, EAIT’s Maidstone Account performed very poorly.' Between
December of 1994, when the i.ccount was opened, and April of 1995, EAIT invested
$140,488 in the Account. By August of 1995 the Account had incurred $101,990 in tradmg
losses. Thereafier, EATT made no further investments in the Account until June of 1996,
Although thers were sporadic deposits between June of 1996 and August of 1997, at no time

/
did the stock in the Account have a value greater than $1.262,041. None of these material

facts were disclosed to the investors.

15.  Other than the Mai' tone Account, the only other "investments"” EAIT made

!

l

was §61,813 for 2 two-bedroom;condominium in Hackensack, NJ and $85,766 in a topless
]1

dance club in the Bronx, NY. ane of these material facts were disclosed to the investors.

16.  More then two ﬂnm._ s of the money was spent by the defendants cn operating

Page 5of 25
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expenses and their own compeniation. JOSEPH CORDO received $209,420, SCOTT

STACKPOLE recsived $389,39§', R. STEVEN STACKPQOLE collected $634,057, and
I

GAVIN GREENE was paid 58165.21 1. Additional sums were spent on other ventures they

owned or controlled. For examplié, v$303,753 was paid 1o 2 bankrupt insurance agency R.

STEVEN STACKPOLE operated in New Jersey and $177,321 was paid to Harrs

Coordinating Services, Inc. Nane of these material facts were disclosed to the investors.

17. EAIT sent appro:d:Tnately 1,075,336 of the investor funds to CPT. Of this

amount CPT paid $267,594 to KII;.EPPER and $128,241 to CORDO. Other payments were
|

made by CPT and EAIT on KLEPPER and CORDO’s behalf. For example, approximately

$50,000 was spent on a boat for CORDO that was titled in New Jersey under KLEPPER s

name. In 1996 EAIT advanced KLEPPER approximately $88,512 1o avoid a Sheriff’s Sale
of his Lebanon, PA residence andjto title the property under 2 straw party’s name. Another

$15,000 was spent on an in-ground swimming pool and more than $29,000 was used to pay

monthly mortgage payments. Moreaver, $96,310 was used to pay KLEPPER’s court

ordered restitution. None of these material facts were distlosed to the mvestors.

18. KLEPPER also pal;d James Butler, an Assistant Vice-President in Nazareth

National Bazk’s Trust Depamn:n,t,, $16,623 in "commissions” for his help in securing funeral
[

home investments with EAIT. Nene of these material facts were disclosed to the investors.
i '
i ]
- - - L ' [) . . - . . .
19, In order to decsive the investors into believing their investments were

profitble and in crder to perpetuate the longevity of the scheme, EATT used a porticn of the

investors’ money to pay death claims, to make refunds, and to make monthly interest
]
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| ®
payments to some of the mdmamal investors. EAIT and CPT also mailed false statcmcnts

to the investors Which misrepresented the true status of their accounts.
!

I

20.  OnMarch 25, 1997, R. STEVEN STACKPOLE was indicted by the State of
.

New Jersev and charged with Con?spiracy, Theft by Deception, Misapplication of Entrusted

i .
Property, and Misconduct by a (%orporate Official. The charges alleged STACKPOLE

defrauded an unspecified number f'<>f investors out of more than $75,000 between 1989 and
|
1994. None of these material facts were disclosed to the investors.

21, On June 18, 1997,Nazareth National Bank learned STACKPOLE had been
indicted in New Jersey. On or about June 27, 1997, US Bancorp resigned as a trustes for

the fimeral homes and terminated] its relationship with EATT. None of these maien'al facts

were disclosed to the funeral hom:l:s or the mdividual investors.

i
22, In August of 19974 the Nazareth National Bank became concerned that EATT

m its Maidstone Account and that EATT was Imanc:al]y
l

unsound. As aresult, the Nazar, National Bank refused to send any more funeral home
: l

money to EAIT after September 23{', 1997. None of these rpaterial facts were disclosed to the
|

faneral homes or the individual inyestors.

23. Onorabout Octcbe'rﬁ 1997, the Pennsylvania Securities Commission served

had not invested sufficient fun

subpoenas on EAIT, CPT and‘ the Nazareth National Bank in comnection with its

investigation of EAIT s business! i'acuvmes Inorderto appease the Nazareth National Bank,

R. STEVEN STACKPQLE res1zned as a irustee of EAIT on October 20, 1997, Although

.'f'

I"

STACKPOLE purportedly resign

..:L he continued to manage and direst EATT’s afTairs

Z

~J)




I\ .

thereafier. None of these material facts were disclosed to the funeral homes or the individual

Investors.

|

|
|
several meetings and telechone con'\‘éersaﬁ ons with representatives of EAIT and the Nazareth
||

National Bank regarding these events and EATT’s dire financial situation.

g
25, Upontheurgingofthe Nazareth National Bank, on February 28, 1998, EATTs

24.  Between Septembez| of 1997 and February of 1998 KLEPPER participated in

Maidstone Account was liquidsted and approximately $440,000 in proceeds was released to

another company hired to replac/EATT. Even though some of the monéy in the Account

was atiributable to individual mvestors, the funds were used to purchase term life insurancs
policies for pre-need customers)| |Nome of these material facts were disclosed to the

individual investors or the funerall homes.

26.  Even though KTEPPER knew EAIT had been replaced by another company,

that EAIT"s Maidstone Account lLad been liquidated, that the proceeds of the Account had

been used to purchase term life insa,ln;ance, and that EATT had no other substantial assets, CPT

sent iternized statements to the fimeral homes for the months of March, April, May and June

of 1998 indicating their investments were not only intact, but growing,

!
i

27, InJuly of 1998 ene of the individual investors asked KLEPPER for a refund
i

. i : ) ,

ofhis $168,000 mvestment with EAIT. KLEPPER tried to dissuade the investor from doing
o . e
i

. . . I . ) . . . o o e ee

so by assuring hum his money ‘3}35 safe and by telling hmm a series of lies, inciuding a
i

representation that EAIT sill had its funeral home business and had replaced Maidstone

Financial with ancther very successiul find menager.
h

it Page8of 25
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'28.  Some individual investors elected to receive monthly interest payments from

EAIT. In order to conceal EAIT 's onancial insoivency, KLEPPER forwarded money to

SCOTT STACKPOLE, who then sent EAIT monthly interest checks for August, September

and October 1998 to two investors/m

Pennsylvania.

|

29.  In July of 1998 another individual who was then residing in Florida requested

a partial refund of his investmept
was financially insolvent, on Octo

in New Jersey to SCOTT STACK]

© for S7,Q00.

30. Contrary to whatha

any of the investors’ losses.

D.  The Mailings And Intérs1'a1

Lii’

ith EAIT. In order to further conceal the fact that EAIT
er 13, 1998, CORDO wired §7,000 from a CPT account

OLE, who then sent the investor an E:AIT refund check

been represented, there was no insurance coverage for

e Carrier Deliveries

31. In furtherance of the above described scheme and artifice to defrand, on or

about the dat’eé set forth below, m{ the Middle District of Pennsylvania and elsewhere, the

Defendants,

R
SC

i

STEVEN STACKPOLE,
&TT STACKPOLE, and
JEFFREY KLEPPER

did knowingly cause any matter or thing, to wit; EAIT checks, to be delivered by mail and

.'|"

coramercial interstate carrier to the addresses set forth below, according to the direction

|

therson:

Page 9 of 25
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COUNT | DATE ?AMQI}NT ADDRESS VIA
1 1/23/97 | $23015 | 702 Cumberland Strest | US MAIL
} - . Lebanon, PA
2 416/97 | $32i654 | 702 Cumberiand Strest | US MALL
- ; | Lebanon, PA
3 6/05/97 | $130,186 | 702 Cumberiand Strest | FEDERAL
Lebanon, PA EXPRESS
4 |7/24/97| $361,154 | 702 Comberlend Street | FEDERAL
i Lebanan, PA EXPRESS
5 8/18/97 | $25600 | 702 Cumberdend Strest | US MAIL
! Lebanon, PA
6 8/22/98 | 1,975 | 620 EastMaple Strest | USMAIL
| Lebaman, PA
7 8/22/98 | 51,525 100 Momissey Drive | US MAIL
l Lebanon, PA
8 o/18/08 | 51875 620 EastMaple Strest | US MAIL
“ Lebanon, Pennsylvania
9 9/18/98 | $1,4'5; s 100 Momissey Drive | US MAIL
- | Lebanon, PA o
10 |1019/98 | $1975 | 620 EastMaple Street | USMAIL
{ Lebanon, Pennsyivania
11 |1019/98 | $1,525 100 Momissey Drive | US MAIL
' Lebanon, PA

All in violation of Title 18,

=

nited States Code, Section 13541,

CAEVRY)




The Grand Jury Further Chaﬂ,g?s:

COUNT 12
Cozspiracy To Commit Mail Fraud

A.  The Conspiracy

i. Betwesn November ,!Jf 1994 and December of 1998, n the Middle District

~ . N - ]
of Pennsylvania and elsewhere, the Defendants,

R{STEVEN STACKPOLE,
SCOTT STACKPOLE,
JEFFREY KLEPPER, and

JOSEPH CORDO

did unlawfully, willfully and knowingly combine, conspire, confederate and agree with

themselves and with others, known and unknown to the Grand Jury, to commit the crime

of Mail Fraud, 18 U.S.C. § 1341

B.  Objectives of The Cnnspirrcy
2. It was an objectiveof the Conspiracy to cefraud the individual investors,

the banks, and the funeral home investors with EAIT, es set forth in Counts 1 - 11 of this
Indictment, and obtain their money, approximately 37,313,504, which said Counts are
|

{

specifically incorporated herein. {

C.  Overt Acts in Furtherance of the Conspiracy

|
!
3 For purposes of thig Secn'on, the overt acts of the defendants that are set

1 |

don C of Counts | - ]Il of this Indictment are specifically 1 Incorporated herein.

forth in Secd

] I
All in violation of Title ]8. Umt=d States Code, Section 371.




The Grand Jury Further Char.rges:

A,

l

COUNT 13
Conspira ug to Commit Money Laundering

The Conspiracy

1. Between November of 1994 and December of 1998, within the Middle

District of Pennsylvania and elsewhere, the Defendants,

R/STEVEN STACKPOLE,
JEFFREY KLEPPER, and
JOSEPH CORDO

did conspire and agree with one another and with ofhers known and unknown to the

Grand Jury, to commit certain offenses under Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1955

and 1957, as follows:

(a) toconductagdattempt to conduct financial transactions affecting
interstate commerce, Whiﬂlh transactions involved the proceeds of specified
unlawful activity, (1) with the intent to promote the carrying on of such
specified unlawful a::i:'vity,l and (2) knowing that the transaction was designed
in whole or in part to cq'nccal and disguise the nature, location, source,
ownership, and control of the proceeds of said specified unlawful activity, and
(3) knowing that the tmnsglcﬁon was designed in whole and in part to avoid a
transaction reporting requi'ﬁement under Federal law, and that while conducting
and attempting to conduct|such financial transaction knew that the property
invalved in the financial t:#;'msactibns, represented the procesds of some form
of uniawiul activity, in vic!ullaﬁon of 18 U.S.C. § 1956(2)(1); and

) 1o lmowing.‘..’y engege, and knowingly attempt to engage in
monetary transactions in %:riminally derived property that was of a value
greater than $10,000, in viclation of 18 U.S.C. 1957;

Overt Acts in Furtherance of The Conspiracy

R |

{

Page 12 of 25
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i
’
STACKPOLE authorized, caused and directed the transfer of funds in excess of $10,000

from EAIT and EAJ accounts in New York to CPT and JEFFREY KLEPPER accounts at the

Northwest Savings Bank in Le'can,an, PA,

.o . ‘ . - ~ - .
3 On diverse occasions during the course of the Conspiracy, JEFFREY

-l

[l ‘
KILEPPER authorized, caused am?idirectcd CPT checks in excess of $10,000 to be issued

and paid at the Northwest Savingsll Bank in Lebenon, PA.

| | |
4, Ondiverse occasions during the course of the Conspiracy, JOSEPH CORDO

had EAIT structurs payments to hmm via checks in amounts less than $10,000 in order to

avoid financial transaction reporung requirements. CORDO would give the checks to

another individual who would cash them on his behalf in New Jersey.

5. In July of 1996 JEFFREY KLEPPER and his wife, Debra Klepper, sold their
residence at 87 Walden Road, Lei’emon, PA on paper to one Michae] Smith, who held the
* property on their behalf as a straw party. KLEPPER provided Smith with $41,613 to effect

|

his “purchase™ and false CPT cmplU)yment and eamings records to qualify him for mortgages

on the property. Thersafier, KLEPPER paid Smith’s morigage payments with CPT checks.
, 0
6.  InJuneof1997 JOS,EPH CORDO purchased a 1997 SEA RAY boat in Brick,

New Jersey for $77,000, in part."!m‘di $9,900 cash, The boat Was invoiced, titled and
|

financed under KLEPPER’s natn'e,’ Thoe $1,087 monthly finance payments and the beat’s
I

: s ]
repairs were paid with CPT checls.
|

| .
7. The substanuve Money L aundering, 18
1 -

-

J.8.C. § 1926, and Uniawful Monetary

H
of
!

r
n
[]e]
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[
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Q
[
[
tn

\
4 H
{UR




Transaction, 18 U.S.C. § 1957, Counts of this Indictment (Counts 13-57) are specifically
incorporated herein as additional overt acts in furtherance of the Conspiracy.

Al in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956(h).
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The Grand Jury FurtherChargeS'I |
COUNTS _14-20

Unlawfal Monetary Transactions
Ih Excess of $10,000

Op or about the below listed dates, in the Middle District of Pennsylvania, the

efendants,

R. STEVEN STACKPOLE and
JEFFREY KLEFPER,

did kﬁdwingly engage in monetary| transactions in cﬁmindly derived property that was of
a value greater than §10,000, which ;s,aid property was derived from ;peciﬁed unlawful
activity, to wit; in that R. STEVEN STACKPOLE and JEFFREY KLEPPER caused the
below described EA International Trust (EAIT) checks and wire transfers to be deposited

into accounts at the Northwest Savings Bank in Lebanon, Pennsylvania, said checks and wire

transfers constituting proceeds derived from the crime of Mail Fraud, 18 U.S.C. § 1341, as

set forth in Counts 1 - 11 of this Indictment:

COUNT | DATE ITEM NORTEWEST
DEPOSITED, | ACCOUNT
14 s96 | $40,000 JEFFREY
(wire transfer) KLEPPER
15 8/2/96 548,512 CPT
S (wire transfer)
16 1/23/97 §23,015 CPT
1 (check) -
17 116/97 32,654 CPT
: (check)

Page 150of 25
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COUNT DATE | ITEM NORTHWEST
' ] DEPOSITED | ACCOUNT
18 6/06/97| $130,186 CPT
’ (check)
19 7/24/97}" $361,154 CPT
| (check)
20 3/18/97) §25,600 CPT
| (check)

All in violation of Title 18,

Page 16 of 25
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The Grand Jury Furth @ harges: ]

COUNTS 21-25
Unlawful Monetary Transactions
In Excess of $10,000

Om or about the below listed dates, in the Middle District of Pennsylvania, the

defendant,
JEFFREY KLEPPER,
did knowingly engage in monetary ansactions i criminally derived property that was of

a value greater then 510,000, wh:ch said property was derived from specmed unlawful

ity, to wit; in that JEFFREY KILEPPER caused the below dcscn'bed checks to be paid

activi
at the Northwest Savings Bank in Lebanon, Pennsylvania, said checks constituting proceeds
derived from the crime of Mail Fraud, 18 U.S.C. § 1341, as set forth in Counts 1- 11 of this
Indictment:
COUNT | DATE | AMOUNT PAYEE PAYOR
' ACCOUNT
21 5/09/96 | $40,000 | PA NATIONAL JEFFREY
| BANK KLEPPER
22 | 80596 | $41,613 MIKE CPT
: SMITH |
a3 | 80107 | $50,000 | USCLERKOF CPT
COURTS
s | 30408 | $46,310 US CLERK CPT
| OF COURTS
25 | 40198 | 965,000 CPT CPT
.;

All in violation of Title lé, United States Code, Section 1957.
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The Grand Jury Further Charées{

' COUNTS 26-38
Money Laundering

On or about the datss set forth below, in the Middle District of Pennsylvania, the

defendants, . ll

JEFFREY KLEPPER and
JOSEPH CORDO,

did knowingly conduct and aﬁ&ngt to conduct financial transactions affecting interstate
erce, to wit; the payment of Commonwealth Partnership Trust (CPT) checks at the

conum

Northwest Savings Bank in Lebanon, Pennsylvania, which said checks involved the procse

of a specified unlawful activity, to Wit; Mail Fraud, 18 U.S.C. § 1341, as set forth in Counts
1- 11 of this Indictment, said checks having been tendered for finance payments on a 1997
Sea Ray Boat, knowing that the transactions were designed in whole and in part to conceal
and disguise the nature, location, source, ownership, and control éf the proceeds of said
specified uﬂaﬂ aciivity and that while conducting and attempting to conduct such
financial transactions knew that the property involved in"the ﬁnancial transactions, to wit;

the funds in the amounts set forth below, represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful

activity:
COUNT | DATE | AMOUNT PAYEE
26 712597 | $1.087 CIT GROUP
27 8/20/97 | 1,087 CIT GROUP
28 1027/87 | 82,175 CIT GROUP

:

| Page180f 25
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COUNT | DATE| | AMOUNT PAYEE

29 | 121197 | SL087 | CITGROUP
30 | 12098 | s1,087 | CITGROUP
31 | 21108 | 51,087 CIT GROUP
32 | 30299 | 51,087 CIT GROUP
33 | 3298 | 51087 CIT GROUP
34 | 4208 | s1,087 | cITGROUP
35 | 60598 | 51,087 CIT GROUP
36 | 62988 | 51,087 CIT GROUP
37 | mamg | 51,087 CIT GROUP
38 | snomd | 51,087 CIT GROUP

All in violation of Title 18 United States Code, Section 1956(a)(1)(B)(i) and
Section 2. '
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The Grand Jury Further Charges:

COUNTS 39-52
Money Laundering

On or about the dates set forth below, in the Middle District of Pennsyivania, the
defendant,
JEFFREY KLEPPER

did knowingly conduct and at:empt to conduct financial transactions affecting interstate
commerce, to‘wit; the payment of Commonwealth Partnership Trust (CPT) checks at the
Northwest Savings Bank in Lebanon, Pennsylvania, which said checks involved the proceeds
of a specified unlawful activity, to th; Mail Fraud, 18 U.S.C. § 1341, as set forth in Counis
1- 11 of this Indictment, said checks having been tendered for mmgage payments on real
estate located at 87 Walden Road, Lebanon, PA, knowing that the transabiions were
designed in whole and m part to conceal and disguise the nature, location, source, ownership,
and control of the pmccedﬁ of said specified unlawful activity and that while conducting and
atternpting to conduct such financial transactions knew that the property involved in the

financial transactions, to wit, the funds in the amounts set forth below, represented the

proceeds of some form of unlawful activity:

COUNT | DATE | AMOUNT PAYEE
39 3/24/97 $1,859 EQUITY ONE
40 4/17/97 §1,770 EQUITY ONE
41 5/12/97 51,770 EQUITY ONE

42 6/12/97 51,770 EQUITY ONE
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COUNT | DATE | AMOUNT " PAYEE
43 7/11/97 $1,770 | EQUITY ONE
44 8/06/97 | $1,770 EQUITY ONE
45 9/08/97 $1,770 EQUITY ONE
46 | 1001/97 | S1,770 EQUITY ONE
47 12/17/97 | 1,859 EQUITY ONE
48 1/21/98 $1,859 EQUITY ONE
49 2/25/98 $1,859 EQUITY ONE
50 | 3/04/98 $1,770 EQUITY ONE.-
51 3/27/98 31,859 EQUITY ONE
52 5/13/98 $1,859 EQUITY ONE

All in violation of Title 18 United States Code, Section 1956(a)(1)(B)(i), and
Section 2. '
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Thbe Grand Jury Further Charges:

COUNTS 53-57
Maoney Laundering

On or about the dates set forth below, in the Middle District of Pennsylvania, the

defendants,

JEFFREY KLEPPER, and
R. STEVEN STACKPOLE

did knowingly conduct and. attempt to conduct financial transactions affecting interstate
commerce, to wii; the payment of Commonwealth Partnership Trust (C;P’D checks at the
Northwest Savings Bank in Lebanon, Pennsylvania, which said checks mvolved the procaeds
of a specified unlawful activity, to wit; Mail Frand, 18 U.S.C, § 1341, as set forth in Counts
1- 11 of this 'Indictmcnt, said checks having been t=ndered as funeral home dix.'ector
finder®s fees, with the intent to promote the carrying on of said specified unlawful activity,
and that while conducting and attempting to conduct such ﬁnanma] transactions knew that
the property involved in the financial transactions, to wit; the fimds in the amounts set forth

/
below, represented the proceeds of some form of unlawiul activity:

COUNT DATE CHECK No. AMOUNT
53 12/26 /96 217 $2,281
24 3/31/97 209 $2,241
&3 4/24/97 239 $1,288
36 5/27 197 257 - §7,404
57 6/16/97 366 $15,533

All in violation of Tijtle 18 United States Code, Section 1956(a)(1)(A)(), and
Section 2.




T hne Grand Jury Further Charges:: \'
COUNT 38
Money Laundering Forfeitures

1. The preceding. Counts of this Indictment are specifically incorporated herein
for the Iﬁurpose of alleging forfettures to the United States of America pursuant to the
provisions of Title 18, United States Code, Section 982.

2. The real and personal property listed below was involved in each of the
of’fézses alleged above in Counts 13 through 57 of this Indictment or is propeny traceable
to such property, in that it constitutes money or other property that was the subject of said
tranéacﬁons, constitutes or is desived from procesds the defendants,

R, STEVEN STACKPOLE,
JEFFREY KLEPPER, and
JOSEPH CORDO, .
- obtained, directly or iﬁdirectly, as the result of such offenses, or constitutes proper‘ry.used in
any manner or part to comzmit or to facilitate the commission of said offenses:
(2)  Real Property: !
| All real estate located at §7 Walden Road, Lebanon, Pennsyivania, and

described in the Deed recorded at Deed Book 339, Page 1110 in the Office of
the Recorder of Deeds of Lebanon County, Pemnsylvania;

(b)  Perscnal Property:

A 1997 Model 280 BR Sea Ray Boat, Hull No. SERT20078797, Engine
Serial Nos. OK03179 and OK175201; and

(c)  Any and all other property of the defendants or of any of said defendants up
to the value of the property described in each count of conviction.

* ~n o, Aa




By virtue of the commission of the offenses charged in Counts 13 through 57 of this

Indictment by the defendants,

R. STEVEN STACKPOLE,

JEFFREY KLEFPPER, and

JQSEPH CORDO,

any and all right, title and interest thédefendants may.have in the above-described rea] and
personal property is vested i the Usited States and is hereby forfeited to the United States
pursuant o 'fit]e 18, United States Code, Section 982(a)(1) and Title 21, United States Code,
Section 853. ”

In the event that any of the red or personal PTUP“YY involved in the offenses alleged
gbove in Countsl3 through 57 of ms Indictment or tracesble to such property, or any
prbperty constituting money or other praperty that was the subject of said transactions,
property constifuting or derived fromprocseds the defendants obtained, directly or indirectly,
as the result of such offenses, or pxmﬂrf}' used in 351}' manner or part to commit or to
facilitate the commission of said offesses,es a result of any act or omission of the defendant:

(8) cannot be located upur;ﬂélf-'ise of due diligence, |

()  hes been transferred, soi te, or deposited with a Thl'l';'l'pal‘cy,

(c) has been placed beyondthe jurisdiction of the Court,

(@  has besn substantially @émirished in value, or

()  has been commingled wih sther property which cannot be divided
without difficulty,

the United States demands the forfeime of other property of the defendants up to the vajue

of the real and personal property descied 2bove, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code
he]




| . @013
® ‘®
. . |
Section 982 and Title 21, United States Code, Section 853(p).
|
!
A TRUE BILL

|
|
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GRAND JUR¥*OREPERSON

Date: 2/%/ce

(

DAVID M. BARASCH*
U.S. ATTORNEY
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YOCHIM, SKIBA, MOORE & NASH

ATTORNEYS AT LAW
J 345 WEST SIXTH STRGET
ERIE PENNSYLVANIA 16507

JOSEFH A, YOCHIM ‘ . Telephone 814/454.6345
GARY V. SKIBA Fax 814/456-6603

J. GRF.GORY MOORE

GAKY 11, NASIt , .

MICHAEL R, CAULEY July 25, 1991

CARMELA R. M. PRESOONA

Robert G. Dwyer, Esguire

Trustee

Mechem Bankruptcy Case

Knox Law Firm

120 West 10th Street

Erie, PA 16501 : )

Re: American Association of Retired Persons
1909 K Street N.W.
Wwashington D.C. 20049
(AARP) by Stephen -Zaleznick, Esqulre
and Robin Talbert, Esquire of Counsel
through Local Counsel Gary H. Nash, Esquire
Comments and Objections to Alternatlve Trust Form
Proposals

Dear Mr. Dwyer:

In response to your memorandum dated July 10, 1991,
American Association of Retired Persons (AARP) is filing
the following comments and objections to your alternative
trust form proposals:

1. As the Honorable Judge Bent% previously concluded
in In re Mechem Financial, Inc., 125.B.R. 151 (Bkrtcy. W.D.
bPa. 1991), "The individual purchasers are creditors of the
debtor although they may also have claims against the funeral
directors to the extent they are not made a whole from the
debtor's estate." As creditors they are entitled to notice
and an opportunity to be heard prior to the court proceeding
with any replacement trust plan.

2. Even if the individual funeral directors put forth
some type of replacement trust unless that replacement trust
encompasses all 1nterests which should have been earned and
paid Lo the consumer's trust by the debtor, the consumer remains
a claimant at least to the extent of that unpaid interest and
is entitled to notice to file a proof of claim.




YociiM, SKiBA, MOORE & NASIH

3. All of the consumer creditors are fifth priority
consumer claimants up to the ampbunt of $900.00 per individual
claimant under ll U.S.C. Section 507 (a) (6) .

In addition to the above objections to the replacement
trust mechanism with no notice to ipdividual consumers, the
AARP submits the following comments in regards to the three
replacement trust agreement proposals submitted by Robert G.
Dwyer, trustee on July 10, 1991:

1. Irrevocable 1rust Agreement - Fully Funded Replacement
Trust. If the replacement trust is based on full performance
of the underlying specific contract between the funeral direcctor
and the consumer at the time of death and if the replacement
trust is with a state licensed banking -institution and is
invested at an interest rate which produces a minimum of 5%
A.P.R. per annum to keep pace with inflation and increases in
funeral service costs, AARP agrees with that type of replacement
trust. AARP would still argue that the consumer should receive
notice in advance of creation of the trust and clearly should
receive notlice both in advance of creation of the trust and after
creation of the trust to deal with to deal with their claims of
lost interest on the invested funds; however, the "fully funded"
replacement trust does in fact ' comply with 63 P.S. Section
479,13(c) by requiring the funds to be deposited in a banking
institution. Furthermore, by immediately fully funding the
replacement trust, the consumer is guaranteed continuing interest
at banking market rates at an acceptable level of 5% A.P.R, per
annum to help the account keep pacde with inflation and increases
in the service cost of the funeral services. It is the basic
position of AARP that this fully funded replacement trust
mechanism should be the only replacement trust mechanism offered
to the funeral directors. Each other option does not create an
immediately fully funded replacemen& trust and has some method of
discounting the trust amount.*

2. The irrevocable trust ‘agreement funded by a single
premium insurance or annuity product appears to violate 63 P.S.
Section 479.13(c). The State Board and the trustee indicate that
such substitute trust fundings have been permitted by the State
Board in other cases in the past. The Board permitted this not
through rulemaking, but solely through internal memoranda. The
statutory language of 63 P.S. Section 479.13(c) is very clecar and
until there is a statutory change or at a minimum, administrative
ruling, it is unclear that any authorlty exists to fund an
irrevocable trust with a single premium insurance or annuity
product. The Bankruptcy Court should not permit or sanction a
method of funding a trust agreement which appears to violate the
clear language o1 a State Statute. AARP is also concerned that
one of the major solicitors for the insurance funded trust
business is a company that appears ‘on the 1989 and 1990 "Watch




YocHiM, SKIBA, MOORE & NASH

List" of the National Association of Insurance Commissioners
(N.A.I.C.) Insurance Regulatory Information System (I.R.I.S.).

Given the recent failures of the number of large and small life
insurance companies, the utmost care must be taken in selecting a

replacement trust. If not the court could permit a replacement
trust which might fail in much the same manner as the original
Mechem trust. Finally, most insurance products do not pay an

interest rate on an annual perdentage rate basis that is
comparable to the bank trust agreement rates. Many such policies
would not even meet the minimum standard of 5% A.P.R. which is an
industry accepted standard for pre-need plans to keep pace with
funeral price increases over time.

_ 3. Irrevocable Trust Agreements Secured by Irrevocable
Letter of Credit - The trustee's proposal of -a letter of credit
of 120% of the current cost of the funeral selected by the
customer  utilizes a different idefinition and therefore a
different monetary amount for the v4lue of the replacement trust.
The trustee has selected an arBitrary figure of 120% of that
current cost figure rather thani'a varying actuarially correct
figure .with each individual: custqmer based on life expectancy.
An increase of 20% may be actuarially sound if an individual
lives only 5 to 10 years beyond the .date of creation of the trust
but would not be actuarially sound ﬁor an individual who lived 30
or more Yyears beyond the creation of the trust. The trustee
takes the position that the funeral directors will absorb this
difference at the time of the provzslon of the services but there
is nothing in the original contrgct nor in the trust agreement
that clearly spells out that obllgatlon.

In summary, AARP would Lake the position that older
consumers would be best proLecLéd by option no. 1 (the fully
funded replacemeni trusti). The ionly way that any funeral
director will choose option no. 1 1sfif there are no options 2
or 3. Therefore, the best consumer protection choice among the
trustee's proposals can only be realized if the other two options
are not also extended to the funeral directors. AARP believes
that the irrevocable letter of credit, option no. 3, may well be
a sound financial guarantee of .option no. 1. However, AARP
believes that it should be mathematically based on the same
figure for the cost of the funeral:that is used for option no. 1
making it a clear financial guarantee of the performance of
option no. 1. AARP is opposed to the single premium insurance or
annuity product +trust agreement for option no. 2 primarily
because it does not comply with State law.

~ *AARP also questions how the "fully funded replacement trust"
will work without notice to those consumer purchasers who had
revocable trust agreements.
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Finally, AARP 1is attaching hereto and marking Exhibit A a
letter written to the trustee Robext G. Dwyer dated April 23,
1991 from Lee E. Norrgard of the Washlngton office of AARP,
Consumer Affairs, demonstrating that many of these concerns
were addressed well in advance: of this final trust{ agreement
proposal. Hopefully the court will fully consider all of the
above objections in crafting a final replacement trust proposal
to the funeral directors limiting the range of choices to
option no. 1 or more specifically a plan that complies with
the sState statute which they should have originally complied.

Respectfulﬁy submitted,

AMERICAN ABSOCIATION OF
RETIRED PERSONS (A.A.R.P.)
Stephen Zaleznick and
Robin Talbert of Counsel
Gary H., Nash, Esquire,
Local Counsel
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Gary H, N%sh Esquire

I

cc: Daniel Goodemote, Esg., Bureau,of Consumer Protection
Guy C. Fustine, Esquire ! J
John F. Mizner, Esquire %
Steven Baicker-McKee, Esquire
Edgar Patrick Striffler, Esquire
Gerald E. Malinowski, Esquire !/
Joseph R. Polito, Jr., Esquire:
Daniel J. Barrett, Esquire
Michael J. Jan Janin, Esquire
Thomas K. Noonan, Esquire
David C. Balmer, Esquire
Honorable Warren W. Bentz i
Sally Engle, Director of Life Bpreau
Kathleen Wallace Grossman, Prosecutiting Atty, PA Funeral Bd.
John B. Barbour, Esqguire !
Jay R. Rose, Esquire

Thomas Michael McGraw, Esquire : Harry M. May
Toni M. Cherry, Esquire ; Royer H, Taft, Esq.
A. Groh Schneider, Esquire ! Mark L. Glosser, Esg.

Thomas E. Kuhn, Esquire

Thomas J. Mnarcik, Esquire

Mark J. Shire, Esquire
0485-let

Clark Dearth
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”."Pre-need funerals in que

gw%qu\
tion—

after questlonable investment-

By TDRRY MUTCIILER
Assoclated Press writer .

' HARRISBURG ,: (AP). A
~ guestionable investment in rare coins
. by an Erie-based coripany could rob
more than 1,700 people of the funerals
. they planned and paid t'or in advance
_'a state official said. U
“ v; Mechem Flnanclal Iic., a company
that marketed more than $4.5 million
-in preé-need-funeral plans, filed for
bankruptcy, Ieavmg the prepald
plans atrisk’: :
Déeputy Attorney General Damel R.
Goodemote said a recent trustees
~.report from the company indicated ils,
. investment, in rare coins may ot
* have been & wxse move, The coins; he
- -said, may:, not: have been worth what
’ 'comp Ny ot'hcnals originally thought,
which - hag’. contnbuted -to the
bankruptcy Iilmg "

Goodcmote said the attorney
general s office has filed to intervene
in the filing in order to protect 1,753
consumers who made funeral -
arrangements in advance. His office
became involved. after receiving
complaints from .the American

- Association of Retired Persons.
- Mechein official John Copple has an
.unpublished number and could not be
reached for comment. Mechem at-
‘torney Randy Shapira did not return a
reporter’s telephone cnll Thursday.

Under the program people paid for”.
funerals in advance. As allowed, by
law, the funeral directors invested al
least 90 percent of the money in a
trust fund with Mechem. The money -
invested by funeral directors i$ at risk
but it remained unclear whether the
funerals are guaranteed Goodemote
sald

lhe tru'st funds are defmlte]y in
jeopardy but it appears that the
funeral direcétors may be on the hook
for the funerals. But, we don t know
yet ” he sald.

Goodemote said muich of the out- .
come,.Is stxll unclear becduse the'
_attorney :general’s office only .
C..Tecently became lnvolved in. the
’ proceedmgs S .

'. ' ‘.-?:' e

Under its Chapter 7 bankruptcy

- action, Mechent would be liquidated

and its assels distributed Lo creditors.
The following funeral homes on the .
list released by the state Atlorney
Generals Office, have filed claims
agamst Mechcnl Fmancml Inc of
Eriei
—-Carl J. Spallmo Funeral Home
Charleroi $47,292.62.
" —Frank , T.. Mlhalcll( F’unernl
Home, Indlana $43 124.57,
. —William M. Bog:\n Funeral Home
~ Canonsburg, $64,683.43. .
—Carmine J. Parise & Louls C.
Parise Funeral Home Carbondale,
$527.04.
. —Marlin Funeral }lome Butler,
$1,100. '

_'-—Mark S. Patterson Funeral
Home, Warren, $79,973.66. °
B —Welch Fune-ral Itome ("ord City,

$920539 LA .
—Kulik Funcral Home A]lentown
$75 099 09.: A ‘ ORI }

-"—-Kulxk Remsmlth Funeral Home
Emmnus, $129,058.09. :
—Kulik Funeral lIome Bethlehem

. $8,376, Aty
H Cr gF

L —will
" McKeesport, $68 884.05. .
.'—Steighner ', Funeral Ilome,
Chicora, $70,648.54," R4
—John B. Greenlee Funeral Home,
Bealsville, $43,586.09.
- —Glenn-Kidoo I‘uneral Home Inc
Zehenople $38,239.79,

ral Ho e,

o REhATd S *McDonald E( Funeral

LJay'E: Lowery- Funcral lrome "’ Ifome“l{ane $$35,000.06, /- M-

Athcns $12,185.86. .

.—Thomns M.. Stelghncr I"uneral
. Home, Chicora, $69 450,83,

—Mohney Yargar Funcrnl Chapel
‘Ine., DuBois, $5,450. -

-—-Ivory Funeral Ilome Wllham-.

stown, N.J., $10.166.37. .. ,
—Deely Funeral - Home Inc.,’

Punxsutawney, $193, 263.99 v

. ——Wllham It May I"unernl Home,

$48,890.13. .

] ——Ellena_ Fuiiéral IIome

Russellton, $26,164.49.

——Thomas M. Dolli Funeral llomc ‘

$2,029.
—Terry L. Beamer Funeral IIOme
Inc., Brogkville, $1,902.11
Rlchard D. lIlllls Funeral llome
Petrolla, $60,714. 36. ’

.'=—Thomas D. Enghsh I“uncml-

Home, Oakmont, $58,107.72. .
—Jaines' M. Illggms Funeral Ilome
Tidioute, $76,873.61. :
—Dear th F‘unexal Home, New
Salem, $20,331.18. ,
—Ilerond Funeral Home, Point’
- Merion, $35,177. - -

B —Mark V Yanaitis I“ununl llome !

Hudson, $15,348:64,

—Nasevnch Funeral ' Home.’
Philadelphia, $106,820.50. . -,

| —Falk Funeral Home, Pennsburg,
T 867,068, 4 b s g 1y e
: =Shel y;,hFuneral Home
Warrlngton $29,038.15.
- 7-Frank : Jayt,

M

. i
i

i ,'?_"—Jamég J, Alfiefi Funeral'}Io 8,

B
'.

Natlonal Funeral

Deely Funerul Ilome Inc
Punxutawney, $200,981.34.
»-"-—-Gelbel Funernl Home, Butler
5390 4501, ,
»—-John S. Maykuth Funeral llome,

y h\-u

Masontown $28,355.57.- . 1%
'~ Joseph A. Tomon Funeral llome,
Ellwood City, $i0, 694.88.. : !
—Linwood OLt I"uneral Ilome Inc
Boyertown, $164,520.20. .
—-McKmney Funeral IIome Inc
Youngsville, $106,550.60. °
—Albert Lesko Funeral Home
Tonald .V.. Lucas Funeral llome
Braddack, $107,904.26.. .
X —Byham Mxller Mizner r‘uneral
. Home, Inc., Meadville, $18, 627.03,

B ——John R. Orfando Funeral Ilome

inc., Erle, $436,642.48. ..
-j,—-Marshall Funeral Home, Inc,
Wampum $10 895.27.

-.;":—-—Scott l"uneral Ilome Erle

$90 244.82. T

'\—-AD (.ampbell Funcral llome

Ingh Beaver Falls, $665,023.72.
-Fuieral Suppont Servnces Inc,

1] Beaver Falls, $216,323.78.

.~—Funeral Support Servxces Inc
Mcl{eesport $105,800.51.

-—Guardlan Funeral Plan ,Inc.,‘

McKeesport $802 20 :
:—Hatheway- Tcdesco l"uneral
llonte Inc,, Measdville, $92,428.11. "

erdlm,,s-m 329, 7, v

me, llatboro $42 035 01

A.; Groh Schnexder Funera_l
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Copple Convicted on 34 Counts
in Mechem Case

A jury deliberated for 42 hours before
returning guilty verdicts convicting John R.
Copple of all 34 counts of mail fraud and three
counts of tax evasion lodged against him in a
case that Pennsylvania funeral directors have
been following for nearly two years.

Assistant U.S. Attorney Ernest DiSantis Jr.
called the conviction “one of the most signifi-
cant white-collar prosecutions” ever to come
out of the Erie office due to the “extent of
fraud, the amount of losses to funeral direc-
tors and individual investors and amounts

_owed to the government for unpaid taxes.”

DiSantis, who prosecuted the case, reported

that trial ev1dence established that Copple used - - :
: fmances until we pass a law saying that every
- time we appropnate somethmg we ‘ve got to

- continued mxsrepresentatlons to induce funeral

' dlrectors and mdlwdual investors to invest

-more than $12 mxlhon with him. Although
~ some of the money was to be held in trust for
- 'pre-need funeral plans, Copple was shown to

have diverted about $4 million for his personal

use. He also placed funds that were thought
“to be in safe, conservative mvestments into, the
speculative market of rare coins. '

- Copple faces a maximum penalty of more
than 150 years in prison and fines exceeding
- $1 million. He is free on bond pending his
_sentencing, which is slated for December 1.

Defense attorney Leonard Ambrose says that

he will appeal the verdict.

“Although it is a relief that Copple has been
put out of busines,” says PFDA Executive
Director John Erikson, “for every shady invest-
ment scheme that folds, two or three will pop
up overnight like mushrooms. One might think
that funeral services would be safe from this
type of abuse, but even the victims of Hur-
ricane Andrew are being preyed on.”

“Although the pre-need clients in the
Mechem case will have their plans honored by
the funeral homes,” Kenneth Baylor of the
Pennsylvania Funeral Trust points out,

must be vigilant in guarding the funds entrusted ,

to us.

“If a financial service company’s return on

investment sounds too good to be true it

should send up a warning flag in your mind,”

says Baylor' “When it comes to investments,

* remember the old Aesop Fable about the tor-

toise anvd the hare: slow but steady wins the

' race

We waI ‘”ne'ver get anywhere with our

pass another bill along with it stating where the
money is coming from. -

— Will Roge}rs; :
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